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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

WCedar Hill is one of the few remaining cruciform dwelling
houses existing in Maryland, It is built of brick and stands
one—and-one-half stories tall, except the porch tower, which is
two full stories.\ All the walls are laid in Flemish bond above
a single-step water table. The chimney stacks are laid in Eng-
lish bond above the "shoulders" of the fireplaces. With the
exception of the northwest door and window of the porch tower,
there are segmental arches above the windows. The former have
flat brick arches of a different color, reminiscent of rubbed
brick. The basement arches have segmental undersides and flat

{ uppersides.

The. southeast part of the cross consists of a large, full-size,
one-and-pne-half story section. The opposite side consists of
a small cubical or porch. The chimneys on the gables of the
main axis are on the outside of the wall, while the chimney on
the southeast is fully within the gable, allowing a stair to be
constructed in one corner (northeast).g\

Beneath the main axis and tower is a full cellar. (In the
southeast is a partial cellar dug after the original construc-
tion and probably during the twentieth century when heating was
installed). The huge fireplace in the southwest part of the
cellar definitely suggests the room was used as a kitchen, but
this contradicts evidence found in eighteenth century inventor-
ies which locates the kitchen on the first floor of the house.
The southwest cellar room is separated from another room, cor-
responding to:;the stair hall above, by two large semi-circular
brick arches. A stair to the first floor hall rises below the
.main stair .to the second floor. Cedar Hill was constructed
with summer beams in the basement ceiling.

On the main floor, the porch has an exterior door, two large
windows, and an arched opening to the stair hall. Beneath the
windows are seats supported on scrolled uprights extending the
length of the wall. Since the window and door trim matches
that in most of the house, the tall arched opening between the
porch and the stair hall seems incomplete because it lacks the
keystone and imposts in the trim. -

The stair has a huge raised panel soffit, square newels, the
first with flutes, a well-shaped hand rail and square balus-
 ters. The newels and rail are walnut; the balusters are
 painted.

(See Continuation Sheet)
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S@ATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

edar Hill is significant as an example of a cru
built in the eighteenth century -that is typical of- seventeenth
century archltecturexp Bond Castle in Calvert County, -which
burned in the twentieth centurX, was a better known example of
the same type of architecture.

The exterior and the floor plan of Cedar Hill correspond to
documents degcribing the house of John Bigger, which was built
before 1714. However, the interior details, the support sys-
tem in the basement, and the roof construction indicate a date
in the second quarter of the eighteenth century. The absence
of Calvert County records before the 1880's compounds the dif-
ficulty of documenting the date of Cedar Hill.

The name Cedar Hill dates from the nineteenth century. The
house and its surrounding lands were originally called Bigger,
after its first owner, John Bigger. A Calvert County tobacco

|planter;Bigger supplemented his income -through mercantile

activities. He bought goods in England and sold them to his
neighbors in return for their tobacco. As Aubry .Land of -the
University of Georgia has indicated, most colonial Maryland
fortunes were founded by merchant planters.3 In addition to
his business life, Bigger served in the Calvert County militia,
in the colonial assembly, and as a treasurer of King William
School in Annapolis.
o (See Continuation Sheet)

Colonlal'SettlementS‘tO'the Natlonal Period,
160-2.

(New York: 1952),

2Tnventories and Accounts (Calvert County), 1714, Liber 36C,

folio 25, Hall of Records, Annapolis, Maryland.

3Aubry Land, lecture given at the Maryland Historical Society,
Baltimore, Maryland November 29, 1970. Dr. Land's lecture
w1ll appear. in the summer 1972 issue of the Maryland Histori-
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Primary Sources: Hall of Records, Annapolis, Maryland

Cedar Hill, near Barstow, Maryland Cedar Hill Cemetery, Tomb-
stone inscription. o

Maryland State Library, Annapolis. U.S. Census. 1800-1850.
Calvert County. - '

Anne Arundel County Probate Records.

(See Continuation Sheet)
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6. REPRESENTATION IN EXISTING SURVEYS continued

Historic American Buildings Survey

1969 Federal
Library of Congress
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7. DESCRIPTION continued

. Northeast off the hall is the parlor with one raised panel wall,
paneled window seats and wainscot, and glazed corner cabinet
with an arch like that in the hall. The cabinet is decorated
with a carved shell and fluted columns. A late mantel has been
applied over the paneling, reducing the opening of the fire-
place. Late Federal trim with corner blocks has been applied
around the door and windows.

On the opposite side of the hall is a smaller room that has orig-
inal window trim and a Federal mantel with an opening smaller
than that of the original fireplace. Beyond the hall (southwest)
is a cross-hall, or corridor, with exterior doors on both ends,
and the present dining room. As in the two front rooms the size |
of the dining&oom fireplace was reduced and trimmed with a Fed-
eral mantel, this one with gouge carving. Flanking the fire-
place is an enclosed stair and a passage leading to the present
kitchen which was enlarged from a closet with a small window. A
large string of frame additions is built on the southeast side
of the house.

Oon the second story, the rooms correspond with those below. The
porch chamber has a very low ceiling and three windows with a
superb view of the Patuxent River. - Each room has very simple
trim and two panel doors. Above the diningroom there has been
some alteration to accomodate a modern bath. '

Most of the construction details are exposed in the attic which
extends above the whole house.

(1 of 3 Continuation Sheets)
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8. SIGNIFICANCE continued

After John Bigger's death, his considerable estate and cruciform
house became the property of his widow, Anne Bigger, who subse-
quently married Patrick Andrew. Andrew continued living in
Bigger's house after his wife died, even though John Bigger's
will had stipulated that the property was to go to his nephew,
Kendal Head. Head conveyed the title to James Carroll of Annapo-
lis who brought suit against Andrew and won an ejectment.

In the 1730's, the house was rented to, and then bought by,
Thomas Crompton. Architectural details in Cedar Hill indicate
that the house was built during the Crompton period. Documentary
evidence indicates that he did live in a cruciform house similar
to Cedar Hill.

Crompton died in 1743. His widow married James Weems, a wealthy
Calvert County planter who held Bigger in trust for Thomas
Crompton's son Thomas Crompton until 1767. The house and land
remained in the Crompton family passing to Thomas Crompton's

(d. 1773) daughter, Mary Crompton Gantt, and then to his grand-
son, Dr. Thomas Gantt (d. 1829). After Dr. Gantt's death, Cedar
Hill became the property of his son, Virgil Gantt, who operated
a farm there until 1871.

' The next owner was Mason Locke Weems, the President of Weems
Steamboat Line which operated passenger boats on the Chesapeake
Bay between Baltimore and southern Maryland. The house had a
succession of owners in the twentieth century. In the 1940's,
Charles Smith Hamilton and his wife restored Cedar Hill. The

" current owners, Mr. and Mrs. Eric Schneider, are continuing a
restoration program for the house.

4Inventorles (Calvert County) L'b@inlﬂ folio 19, Hall of Records

Annapolis, Maryland. \>
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